












From: Suzanne Henderson
To: @gov.scot"
Subject: FW: EPS and ADD use at fish farms meeting
Date: 12 October 2016 16:23:00
Attachments: 2015 04 22 SNH MS discussion on ADDs and EPS DRAFTmeeting note.docx

Apologies, I typed your email wrongly in the first instance,
Cheers
Suz
 
 
Dr Suz Henderson
Marine Policy and Advice Officer
Coastal and Marine Ecosystems Unit
Scottish Natural Heritage
Great Glen House
Leachkin Road
Inverness
IV3
 
Direct Dial: 01463 725238
Email: Suzanne.henderson@snh.gov.uk
 

From: Suzanne Henderson 
Sent: 11 October 2016 10:27
To: @gov.scot'; @gov.scot' @gov.scot)';
 @gov.scot'; @gove.scot'; @gov.scot';
 @gov.scot'; @gov.scot'; @gov.scot';
 @gov.scot'; Cathy Tilbrook; Caroline Carter; Liam Wright; Karen Hall
Cc: George Lees; Jane Dodd
Subject: EPS and ADD use at fish farms meeting
 
Hello all,
If you recall we had a meeting way back in April 2015 to discuss the consideration of EPS
 licensing or otherwise for the use of ADDs at fish farms, particularly in light of the then newly
 published EPS Guidance, and various bits of research on ADDs.
 
We are keen to reopen this dialogue and suggest another meeting in the first half of November
 to try and reach some consensus between us.
 
I have attached some draft notes and actions from the last  meeting that George and Caroline
 were working on. Apologies, but I do not think this was ever sent round.
 
Please can you fill in the doodle poll below to indicate your availability, or let me know if there is
 someone more appropriate to invite. Hopefully we can get a date where most folk are available.
 

 
 
Many thanks
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
 















 

Aquaculture - finfish 

In assessing likely impact, our focus has been on the equipment on site, likely vessel 
routes, and the use of Acoustic Deterrent Devices (ADDs) which together represent 
the main interactions between aquaculture developments and harbour porpoise.   

There are numerous finfish farms within or immediately adjacent to the pSAC, mainly 
close to the shore.  Map 2 shows the distribution of aquaculture developments within 
or close to the boundary of the pSAC. 

Aquaculture farm equipment includes pens, nets, moorings and can include floating 
buildings.  We consider that there is a low risk of entanglement for harbour porpoise 
from aquaculture infrastructure.   

Predator control at fish farms is necessary to ensure that welfare of the farmed stock 
is not compromised. Finfish farms often use ADDs as part of their anti-predator 
measures, however, these may result in disturbance/habitat exclusion of harbour 
porpoise. The evidence of impacts on cetaceans from ADDs currently in use is 
varied and is dependent on many variables (e.g. noise characteristics of device, how 
the device is used, the topography, animal behaviour and importance of the 
area/habitat where the ADD is being used).  Therefore, we consider it is important 
that efforts be made to further investigate this issue.  Scottish Aquaculture Research 
Forum is funding research into the effectiveness of acoustic deterrents at lower 
frequencies than are typical of devices in current use. The aim is to better 
understand any disturbance to cetaceans, including harbour porpoise, relating to the 
use of these new devices.  Further research is required but these new devices may 
in the future provide a suitable alternative seal defence mechanism which is more 
compatible with the conservation objectives of the site.  

Working with industry, we are currently undertaking a review of ADD use within or 
near the pSAC.  Information relating to current ADD use within the pSAC is required 
to determine the level of ADD noise emission currently in operation and whether 
further constraints on or more targeted use of ADDs should be considered.   Our 
view is that there could be a risk to the Conservation Objectives as a result of the 
cumulative effects of ADD use within the site. 

A strategic approach is required to reduce/limit the potential of cumulative risks from 
ADD use on the Conservation Objectives of the SAC, and we suggest that 
appropriate feedback loops within predator control management are considered to 
ensure ADD noise emission is minimised. This could be done through the 
development of a best practice ADD use protocol in discussion with industry and 
regulators; this could include a preference for triggered devices and only activating 
devices when seal predation becomes a problem.  It is our view that continuous 
noise emission from ADDs at fish farm sites is not best practice.  In areas of higher 
cumulative risk to the Conservation Objectives (e.g. areas with larger numbers of fish 
farms within straits, sounds and embayments where ADD use may limit access to 











 

Commercial shipping 

There is a variety of commercial vessels operating in the Inner Hebrides and the 
Minches pSAC including ferries, cargo and tanker vessels. These large boats 
typically have relatively consistent vessel routes and operate at a fairly regular 
frequency (although this may vary e.g. between summer and winter).  These vessels 
are generally associated with low frequency (Hz) noise characteristics.  See Map 3 
which shows ferry routes and commercial shipping activity in the site.  Other boating 
activity within the pSAC is covered under the relevant activity (e.g. aquaculture, 
fishing, recreation). 
 
Mortality and serious injury of cetaceans resulting from ship strikes is mainly 
reported in slow-swimming (e.g. sleeping) large baleen whales.  There are relatively 
few recorded ship strikes with smaller cetaceans such as harbour porpoise.  Vessel 
strikes are perhaps not likely to occur frequently, due to the avoidance behaviour of 
porpoises when ships approach.  
 
Shipping produces continuous underwater sounds which are unlikely to cause 
physical trauma, but could make preferred habitats less attractive as a result of 
masking or disturbance (habitat displacement, area avoidance).  In UK waters, a 
negative influence of shipping density on the presence and abundance of harbour 
porpoise was found when shipping intensity surpassed thresholds of approximately 
50 ships per day in the Celtic and Irish Sea management unit and 80 ships per day 
in the North Sea management unit (Heinänen & Skov 2015). Ship-avoidance 
behaviour in combination with masking effects by the ship-generated noises will 
make areas with high shipping densities less suitable for harbour porpoise.  Current 
levels of shipping intensity are not thought to pose a risk to the Conservation 
objectives for the site. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 





 

Introduction to fishing activities   

The management options for fishing activities are based on the known sensitivities of 
harbour porpoise to different types of fishing activity and whether or not that fishing 
activity may affect the achievement of the site’s Conservation Objectives.  This initial 
advice is based on expert judgement of existing evidence in the scientific literature.   

In addition to any direct interactions between fishing operations and harbour 
porpoise within the site, maintaining the abundance of prey species for porpoise is 
an important consideration. For herring, sandeel or sprat the management of 
populations of these species (and related fisheries) occurs at a scale much larger 
than the SAC itself.  Consequently, management of fisheries at the wider scale can 
make a contribution to meeting the site’s Conservation Objectives, and to a large 
extent may already do. 

Fisheries management under the Common Fisheries Policy takes account of 
research and advice on multispecies and food web dynamics, helping to ensure that 
stocks are harvested within sustainable limits. In achieving this it is likely that 
availability of prey species to harbour porpoise will be maintained. In addition, certain 
existing management measures within or adjacent to the site may also be making a 
contribution, such as area restrictions under the Inshore Fishing (Scotland) Act 1984 
to protect herring spawning grounds. 

More information on the specific characteristics of the various fisheries and therefore 
their specific interactions, directly and indirectly, with the harbour porpoise is 
required.  Discussions with those involved with fishing within or adjacent to the site 
will be important for completing the assessment of the extent to which harbour 
porpoise may actually be affected by fishing activities 
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Rhoda Davidson

From: Suzanne Henderson
Sent: 01 March 2016 14:41
To: Caroline Carter
Cc: George Lees
Subject: ADD modelling - draft

HI there, 
Are you still able to make the teleconference tomorrow Caroline? 
If so ‐ just thought it might be a good idea to send out your draft document to others before tomorrow VC? 
 
I am not sure I will get a chance to discuss things with  Katie today to help with next steps, as she can’t attend 
tomorrow, and is fairly booked up today. I hope Karen can attend as there are implications for the HP MOP, but not 
sure if she will have time… 
 
Cheers 
Suz 
 
 
Direct Dial: 01463 725238 
Email: Suzanne.henderson@snh.gov.uk 
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Rhoda Davidson

From: Suzanne Henderson
Sent: 15 September 2016 15:06
To: Alex Turner; Cathy Tilbrook; Liam Wright
Subject: ADD usage in HP pSAC
Attachments: ADD info-  PL model presentation for SSPO meeting on the 17 March 2016.obr; 

Harbour porpoise - advice to support management - all activities_no maps - 18 
August 2016.obr; SSPO Liaison meeting - minutes - May 2016 - DRAFT.obr

Hi 
I said I would share the disturbance zone maps that Caroline and I created. These were to aid discussion of the 
current situation on ADD usage within the pSAC. 
 
See the attached presentation Caroline gave at the last SSPO meeting. 
Slide 14 – Coram et al 2016 map showing 3.5km zone of disturbance based on literature of disturbance 
Slide 15 and 16 – our first attempts at maps using the 2.5km zone of disturbance from Caroline’s model and the data 
SSPO gave us – and when there were 2 separate areas. Note that industry found difficulty in giving definitive 
answers on ADD usage as this seems to change continually and up to farm managers mostly. 
Slides 17, 18, 19, ‐ second attempts at maps using data from SOI questionnaire to industry that is used for the seal 
licencing process. This was for 2015 I think. These latter maps show the 2.5km zone, and the categories of ADD 
usage declared within the SOI questionnaire. Note there are some ambiguities with these categories and how 
farmers might be answering the questions. 
 
We tentatively identified the areas that we thought would be at highest cumulative risk to ADD use currently based 
on this information – as Sound of Mull, Lismore, West of Mull and Rassay, but we did say there may be more. 
We have not mapped these, nor have we have thought about future farms or existing farms that might want 
additional ADD usage. 
 
Also attached is what I believe to be the latest advice on management for the pSAC – within this there is promise of 
guidance for aquaculture.  
 
Lastly – our list of AP from our last meeting with SSPO – just to remind ourselves. AP1 is to meet with Industry who 
farm in the key areas ‐to develop best practice guidelines. 
I had thought about asking Jane if she would mind looking at the AP involving reviewing the questions in the SOI 
survey – as she deals with the seal licencing. However it would be useful to discuss how we might want to use the 
information to ensure we get any changes right. Questionnaires go out in the autumn I believe. 
 
I think it would be useful to redraw the maps based on the next survey answers (with hopefully better questions 
posed) and also include the higher risk areas we have identified – this would fit nicely into any guidance/standing 
advice drawn up. 
Happy to chat further 
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
Sent: 16 March 2016 17:11
To: Caroline Carter
Cc: Karen Hall
Subject: ADD use and all active sites - Inner Hebrides and the Minches (A1914167)
Attachments: ADD use and all active sites - Inner Hebrides and the Minches.obr

Hi Caroline, 
I have quickly done a map overlaying all the active sites on top of the MS data buffers. 
Hopefully this is ok?  
There doesn’t appear to be many areas which are not covered by the MS seal licence data within the dSAC ‐ 
although there are 2 at the mouth of Sound of Mull.... 
Suz 
 
 
Suzanne Henderson has sent you a link to "ADD use and all active sites ‐ Inner Hebrides and the Minches" 
(A1914167) from Objective. 
 
 
Open in Navigator   
Double click on the attachment 
 
Open in Your Browser    
Latest:  https://erdms.snh.gov.uk/id:A1914167/document/versions/latest 
Published:   https://erdms.snh.gov.uk/id:A1914167/document/versions/published 
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Rhoda Davidson

From: Suzanne Henderson
Sent: 14 March 2016 12:21
To: Caroline Carter
Cc: Cathy Tilbrook; Liam Wright; Katie Gillham
Subject: ADD use maps?
Attachments: ADD use - Inner Hebrides and the Minches_MS_Licence data.obr; ADD use - Inner 

Hebrides and the Minches_MS_Licence data_North.obr; ADD use SSPO data w 
modelled buffer - North Minch.obr; ADD use SSPO data w modelled buffer - 
Southern Sea of Hebrides.obr

Hi Caroline, 
Cc Cathy, Liam, Katie 
 
I got a bit of help with these – so managed to complete‐ although could be tweaked if not right. 
Could you have a look please and see what you think? Do we need anything else to make things clearer. 
It would be nice to have our thoughts established on any high risk areas for HP for further investigation/discussion. 
 
The MS‐Licence maps are ones using information on ADD use from the seal licences questionnaire, combined with 
information on “active” fish farms from the Aquaculture Scotland website (drawn in through NMPi). So these maps 
may not be a complete record of farms using ADDS. 
Due to the information within the questionnaire – I have made 4 classes of ADD mode of operation which is 
different to the classes for the SSPO data. Note in all of them the 50m is too small to show – hence the crosses. 
Think this is helpful in case farms decide to change ADD type…. 
 
Do you think it would be useful to have these (or similar) in a presentation format for the meeting – powerpoint?  
Are you planning on doing something like that for you model explanation? 
 
We will be able to show HP pSAC boundaries, but not able to give maps for SSPO to take away. 
 
Happy to chat on phone if easier 
 
Cathy – wondering if we might need to show MS these maps and our thoughts before Thursday somehow – just so 
we don’t talk at cross purposes at the meeting! 
 
 
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

From: t@gov.scot
Sent: 28 October 2016 10:36
To: Suzanne Henderson
Cc: @gov.scot
Subject: FW: EPS and ADD use at fish farms meeting

Hi Suz, 
 
I hope that you are well. 
 
I will be attending the meeting on 8 November so I would be grateful if you could keep me copied into any 
correspondence. Thank you. 
 
How is the basking shark analysis coming along? It would be good to touch base soon. 
 
Best wishes 
 

  
 
From: Suzanne Henderson [mailto:Suzanne.Henderson@snh.gov.uk]  
Sent: 27 October 2016 14:13 
To: ) (MARLAB);  

 (MARLAB);  Cathy Tilbrook; Caroline Carter; Liam Wright; Karen 
Hall;  
Subject: RE: EPS and ADD use at fish farms meeting 
 
Hello, 
Just to confirm we can hold this meeting on 8th November in Edinburgh at the SNH Silvan House office on 
Corstorphine Road. 
A start time of 11.30 until 3.30 seems to fit in with trains. 
Many thanks to all, 
Suz 
  
  
Direct Dial: 01463 725238 
Email: Suzanne.henderson@snh.gov.uk 
  
From: @gov.scot [mailto @gov.scot]  
Sent: 27 October 2016 11:43 
To: Suzanne Henderson; @gov.scot; @gov.scot; @gov.scot; 

@gov.scot; @gov.scot; @gov.scot; @gov.scot; Cathy Tilbrook; 
Caroline Carter; Liam Wright; Karen Hall; @gov.scot 
Cc: George Lees; Jane Dodd 
Subject: Re: EPS and ADD use at fish farms meeting 
  
Suz 
  
Sorry for delay. In replying, 8 November. Is OK for me but Edinburgh. Would be best if possible. Please.  
  
Regards 

  
  
Sent from my BlackBerry 10 smartphone. 
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From: Suzanne Henderson 
Sent: Thursday, 27 October 2016 11:02 
To:  (MARLAB);  
(MARLAB);  Cathy Tilbrook; Caroline Carter; Liam Wright; 
Karen Hall;  
Cc: George Lees; Jane Dodd 
Subject: RE: EPS and ADD use at fish farms meeting
  
Hello, 
Many thanks to all for filling in the doodle poll. 
The best date for most people is Tuesday 8 November so please keep this date free.  
Apologies to those who can’t make this date. 
  
We can offer SNH Battleby as a location but as I have not heard from  or   yet – it maybe 
Edinburgh might  make attendance more easy for you both – please let me know if this is the case and if you could 
host. 
  
Otherwise I have booked a room at Battleby and suggest times of 11‐3pm to tie in with transport and lunch will be 
provided. 
Will be in touch with an agenda soon. 
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
To: @gov.scot'; ' @gov.scot' @gov.scot)'; @gov.scot'; 

@gove.scot'; @gov.scot'; @gov.scot'; @gov.scot'; 
@gov.scot'; @gov.scot'; Cathy Tilbrook; Caroline Carter; Liam Wright; Karen Hall 

Cc: George Lees; Jane Dodd 
Subject: EPS and ADD use at fish farms meeting 
  
Hello all, 
If you recall we had a meeting way back in April 2015 to discuss the consideration of EPS licensing or otherwise for 
the use of ADDs at fish farms, particularly in light of the then newly published EPS Guidance, and various bits of 
research on ADDs.  
  
We are keen to reopen this dialogue and suggest another meeting in the first half of November to try and reach 
some consensus between us. 
  
I have attached some draft notes and actions from the last  meeting that George and Caroline were working on. 
Apologies, but I do not think this was ever sent round. 
  
Please can you fill in the doodle poll below to indicate your availability, or let me know if there is someone more 
appropriate to invite. Hopefully we can get a date where most folk are available. 
  



 
  
  
Many thanks 
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
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********************************************************************** 
This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and  
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are addressed. If you have received this email in error please  
notify the system manager or the sender.  
  
Please note that for business purposes, outgoing and incoming  
emails from and to SNH may be monitored. 
  
  
  
Tha am post-dealain seo agus fiosrachadh sam bith na chois  
dìomhair agus airson an neach no buidheann ainmichte a- 
mhàin.  Mas e gun d’ fhuair sibh am post-dealain seo le  
mearachd, cuiribh fios dhan manaidsear-siostaim no neach- 
sgrìobhaidh.  
  
Thoiribh an aire airson adhbharan gnothaich, ‘s dòcha gun tèid  
sùil a chumail air puist-dealain a’ tighinn a-steach agus a’ dol a- 
mach bho SNH. 
  
  
********************************************************************** 

********************************************************************** 
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This e-mail (and any files or other attachments transmitted with it) is intended solely for 
the attention of the addressee(s). Unauthorised use, disclosure, storage, copying or 
distribution of any part of this e-mail is not permitted. If you are not the intended 
recipient please destroy the email, remove any copies from your system and inform the 
sender immediately by return. 
 
Communications with the Scottish Government may be monitored or recorded in order to secure 
the effective operation of the system and for other lawful purposes. The views or opinions 
contained within this e-mail may not necessarily reflect those of the Scottish Government. 

  

  

Tha am post-d seo (agus faidhle neo ceanglan còmhla ris) dhan neach neo luchd-ainmichte a-
mhàin. Chan eil e ceadaichte a chleachdadh ann an dòigh sam bith, a’ toirt a-steach 
còraichean, foillseachadh neo sgaoileadh, gun chead. Ma ’s e is gun d’fhuair sibh seo le 
gun fhiosd’, bu choir cur às dhan phost-d agus lethbhreac sam bith air an t-siostam agaibh, 
leig fios chun neach a sgaoil am post-d gun dàil.  

  

Dh’fhaodadh gum bi teachdaireachd sam bith bho Riaghaltas na h-Alba air a chlàradh neo air 
a sgrùdadh airson dearbhadh gu bheil an siostam ag obair gu h-èifeachdach neo airson 
adhbhar laghail eile. Dh’fhaodadh nach eil beachdan anns a’ phost-d seo co-ionann ri 
beachdan Riaghaltas na h-Alba.  

********************************************************************** 
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Rhoda Davidson

From: @gov.scot
Sent: 13 October 2016 11:23
To: Suzanne Henderson
Cc: Liam Wright; Jane Dodd
Subject: RE: ADD use and SOI questionnaire

Ok, so after speaking to  at SMRU, it seems that out of all the ADD models available on the market, 
only Ace Aquatec has an actual triggering mechanism when fish are excited / panicked – when the fish 
rush around they bash into a sensor and that can trigger the transducer to make a noise. 
 
Mohn Aqua does not have a triggering system, but it has a low power mode you can switch to high power 
when you feel the need (you can check the weblink for more info). 
 
Note that in the survey only 2 say ADD triggered ‘when the fish behaviour changes’ – this is the cue that 
one site is using Ace Aquatec with a triggering system.  The one other person who said they are triggered 
by fish behaviour with a Mohn Aqua must be referring to visual observations of fish behaviour not a 
triggering device because the Mohn Aqua device has no trigger (as above). 
 
So clearly there are some interpretation issues here - I suspect they may be interpreting the word triggered 
in a more vague way – like they switch them on when they see seals. 
 
I went back to our IT developers to ask for some changes, unfortunately they are reluctant to make any 
changes in case it might cause bugs or twitches and they just don’t want to risk it. It will have to wait untill 
next year. I will have to submitt the request as early as possible as I understand they are also very short on 
staff. So I suggest we add the following questions to be added next year, but I would be grateful for any 
other suggestions from your side. 
 
- ‘If ADD triggered, does the device has its own triggering system or is it switched on manually’ 
- ‘Please specify the amount of time the device is kept ‘on’ and is emitting noise’ 
 
We can definitely look at the amount of noise the devices are emitting and include this in the report. 
 
Thanks. 

  
 

 
Marine Conservation  
marinescotland Scottish Government | 1A-South | Victoria Quay | Edinburgh EH6 6QQ 
Tel: 0131 2440318 

@gov.scot 
 
From: Suzanne Henderson [mailto:Suzanne.Henderson@snh.gov.uk]  
Sent: 11 October 2016 14:35 
To:  
Cc: Liam Wright; Jane Dodd 
Subject: ADD use and SOI questionnaire 
 
Hello   
Cc Liam, Jane for info 
Thanks for getting back to me re the seal licensing survey already being online. 
 
Just been thinking a bit more about this, and some of our recent internal discussions about ADD use in the HP cSAC. 
We want to discuss “best practice” ADD use with industry, and the potential amount of noise being emitted in the 
cSAC from ADDs– with an overall aim of reducing that noise where we can. We therefore were thinking triggered 
devices might be a preferred approach. 
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We will be in touch soon about a meeting with industry– hopefully before Christmas, which we hope you can attend.
 
With this in mind we have had questions over industry using ADDs “continuously” and triggered device use 
and  what is really meant by this. 
 
The question currently in the questionnaire I believe is “Is ADD on constantly or used only at certain times?” Then 
there are months which can be ticked. 
So – what does constantly on mean? A few thoughts/questions… 

 Does this mean the device is always emitting noise at whatever predetermined setting (this can vary 
significantly!) 

 If a triggered device is constantly on ‐ should we assume it will only be on when triggered (by whatever 
means)? 

 Some (or all) ADDs can report the amount of time they are emitting noise, however I think it is only Freedom 
Foods who request to see this information. Is this something we could perhaps ask for? 

 We currently have no idea how often ADDs might be triggered, and believe some models can be triggered 
by bad weather too. I also understand triggered devices have a setting where it can emit noise at 
predetermined times in addition to the trigger. 

 Perhaps triggered devices are emitting as much noise as other devices?  
 
There are perhaps some assumptions we can make if we know the model and manufacturer to help our discussions. 
It may be the survey can only provide us with some information and discussions with industry can do the rest. 
Hopefully best practice can help alleviate some concerns of potential cumulative noise issues within the cSAC. 
 
One final thought is ‐ would there be any chance the report you write with   could perhaps also include some 
analysis of the amount of noise being emitted from ADDs in Scotland – perhaps particularly in certain areas where 
topography and a greater number of fish farms may highlight an increased risk of potential disturbance issues to 
cetaceans?  We feel this would be a useful consideration in assessing the non‐lethal measures of seal control as well 
as aid HP cSAC and EPS discussions. 
 
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
Sent: 15 March 2016 14:06
To: Caroline Carter
Cc: Cathy Tilbrook; Liam Wright; Katie Gillham
Subject: RE: ADD use maps?

Hi Caroline, 
Presentation looks good. 
 
A few minor comments:  
Slide 1 – perhaps tie in (just verbally) with  our action b. in suggested agenda below‐ i.e. the deterrence its part of 
the work on information on areas of higher concern  
Are we agreed on the terminology as we have used acoustic disturbance/deterrence and  ranges/zones previously in 
discussions. Does it matter? 
 
Slide 2 – this is fine for our Thursday meeting ,but perhaps we need to be mindful of sharing this slide at our next 
meeting with all operators? Unsure if they are ok with sharing these details with each other…. 
 
Slide 9 – question for me really – I would be interested in how NOAA set their behavioural thresholds of disruption– 
based on literature I presume, but what exactly and have they adjusted at all for a more precautionary approach?? 
 
Slide 13/14 – do we need the boundaries of the previous 2 pSACs in these maps? 
Slide 15/16 – Perhaps need one map of whole extent of new pSAC? Could use the map from the draft MOP? 
 
I have put a suggested agenda below – in case we think we need additional slides for other items, although we 
won’t have much time to develop! 
 
Cheers 
Suz 
 
Suggested Agenda – will update after agreed at meeting tomorrow and will bring some printed copies 
 

1. Further development on HP pSAC – MS 
(we might want the previous 2 boundaries and the new one on slides?) 

2. New timeframe of SAC process – MS 
3. Summary of science/SNH input?? –   (not sure if we offer this or just wait for questions) 
4. Previous actions from last meeting  

a. Salmon farming industry to supply data on ADD use 
b. SNH work on areas of “higher concern”  
c. SNH consider knowledge gaps and options for research – SARF112/SAMS/HWDT research/ MSc  ‐

Caroline – did you ever discuss this with  ?? It came up at the MASTs student day I believe. 
d. SNH consider cetacean observation information from farms – (this links in to above)  

5. Next steps – MS/SNH 
6. SPA workshop and follow up 

 
 
 
Direct Dial: 01463 725238 
Email: Suzanne.henderson@snh.gov.uk 
 
From: Caroline Carter  
Sent: 14 March 2016 17:12 
To: Suzanne Henderson 
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Cc: Cathy Tilbrook; Liam Wright; Katie Gillham 
Subject: RE: ADD use maps? 
 
For info – this is where I’m at with the model description. I’m aiming to explain the context of modelling – without 
going into the maths. I think it’s useful to set the scene with what types of modelling is out there which then 
explains why the M&S model was chosen for this exercise. 
 
Happy to hear what you think. 
Caroline 
 
 
From: Suzanne Henderson  
Sent: 14 March 2016 15:09 
To: Caroline Carter 
Cc: Cathy Tilbrook; Liam Wright; Katie Gillham 
Subject: RE: ADD use maps? 
 
HI Caroline, 
Thanks for comments – I printed them out and thought the exact same. 
Will redo them and let you know. 
Yes – I think if there are other areas which we think might cause some issues this would be good to discuss. 
I will see if Karen is around to join us on Wednesday too! 
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
Sent: 14 March 2016 14:00 
To: Suzanne Henderson 
Cc: Cathy Tilbrook; Liam Wright; Katie Gillham 
Subject: RE: ADD use maps? 
 
Hi Suz,  
 
I think the maps look great. Much better than what I could do in GeoView!  
 
But, I’m wondering if the colours are too subtle? I agree we should maybe avoid the traffic light system – but as they 
are just now it takes a bit of studying to work out were the different categories are.  It’s a minor point, I’m not sure 
we would want to get them redone necessarily… 
 
I don’t think it’s an issue that the classes are different between the SSPO data and the MS licence data… and yes 
useful to show the cross for the Terecos device. 
 
I think it is useful to have these available for presentation. I was thinking of doing a short presentation on the 
model  (it’s always easier if folk can see what we are referring to) so we can incorporate these maps in as well. 
 
Do we want to think about areas that warrant further discussion in our pre‐meeting on Wednesday? 
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I can start to work on the presentation and aim to share with everyone in advance of our pre‐meeting. 
 
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
Sent: 26 August 2016 13:33
To: Karen Hall; George Lees; Suzanne Henderson; Liam Wright; Jane Dodd; Fiona 

Manson; Katie Gillham
Subject: RE: ADD use on the west coast of Scotland

No, there were no industry present as it was really just a student end‐of‐thesis presentation. Hopefully the work will 
be publically available via the University so we should be able to refer to it from then. Even better if they do get a 
paper published – but that might take some time. 
 
From: Karen Hall  
Sent: 26 August 2016 13:26 
To: Caroline Carter; George Lees; Suzanne Henderson; Liam Wright; Jane Dodd; Fiona Manson; Katie Gillham 
Subject: RE: ADD use on the west coast of Scotland 
 
Thanks Caroline 
 
That’s sounds really interesting and potentially useful for when looking at management options within the 
pSAC.  Were any of the industry at this talk and /or are there any plans to share this work with them? 
 
From: Caroline Carter  
Sent: 26 August 2016 13:19 
To: George Lees; Suzanne Henderson; Liam Wright; Jane Dodd; Fiona Manson; Karen Hall; Katie Gillham 
Subject: ADD use on the west coast of Scotland 
 
Hi All,  
 
I was at a meeting yesterday at SAMS where the two MSc students working with HWDT acoustic data were to 
present their findings. The focus of the studies was to investigate ADD use throughout the HWDT survey area. The 
intention was to have both students presenting, but unfortunately one missed the bus – so didn’t make it!  
 
This may be of interest to us, so I’ve noted some key points below for info; 
 
  looked at data from 2011 – 2015. She initially checked the volunteer ADD signal 

presence/absence logs by re looking at the sound files in PAMGuard. She found that the volunteers were pretty 
successful in identifying an ADD signal in real time (ie when they were listening on survey) but   
analysis extended the occurrence of ADD as she could pick out the quieter signals. (She wanted to check this – I 
think – so that the analysis can be stretched further into the past where volunteer logs exist – but the acoustic 
files don’t). 

 
 She found that over the years there had been a significant increase in ADD presence. An increase of 0.084 to 

0.153 was identified (the metric used was a standardised figure, i.e. number of ADD identifications divided by 
the number of listening stations). 

 
 She could identify three types of ADD in use (Airmar; Terecos and Ace‐Aquatec) and that the increase over time 

was primarily due to more Airmar signals. 
 
 Presence/absence of detectable ADD signal were mapped in 10km square blocks (this shows where a ADD signal 

can be identified, but not how many signals were there – nor the level of the signal(s)). 
 
 The maps showed the extent that ADDs were detectable, in particular you could see that the Sound of Mull and 

Loch Linnhe were completely ensonified, and that the ADD signal can be detected all the way across the Minch.
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 There was preliminary analysis of how the levels dropped with distance (from two locations) From Portree the 

signal could be detected out to 20km from source, in Lochmaddy the signal could be detected out to 30km. This 
is in keeping with literature which suggests the signal can travel up to 50km. The rate of decline is location 
specific but the majority of decay is in the first 5km. 

 
 This project highlights presence/absence of signal, it does not give an indication of absolute level. The analysis 

was done on a relative dB scale rather than absolute (due to an absence of calibration info). 
 
 This work shows how prevalent the ADD signal is in the area (in itself this does not tell us the effect on species of 

interest, it also does not show where the signal came from – just that it was present). 
 
 They hope to turn this work into a publication (from a marine pollution angle) – I’ve asked if we can be kept in 

the loop on that, and in the meantime, I’ve asked if we could have copies of their thesis’  (if we can, they need to 
go through the university process…) 

 
  hopes to continue work in this area – and look at determining absolute levels and then using the data 

to ground truth a propagation model, and there may be potential for working on this with   (provided 
funding can be found).  

 
 Also there may be scope to look at the acoustic data in conjunction with concurrent HWDT sightings data which 

may highlight any fine scale disturbance effects – this is something that they would like to consider in addition. 
 
I think this work is useful in that it is highlighting the increase over time and prevalence of the ADD signal on the 
west coast, but to be of more use it I think we would need absolute levels, and some comparative analysis with 
marine mammal data. There is clearly more that can be done, but this was only a three month project and I think 

 did a good job with the time she had. 
 
Any questions on the above – please shout. 
 
Best,  
Caroline 
 
 
Dr. Caroline Carter 

Policy and Advice Officer ‐ Marine Ecology 

Scottish Natural Heritage,Battleby, Redgorton, Perth, PH1 3EW 
01738 458562 | www.snh.gov.uk 
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Rhoda Davidson

From: Suzanne Henderson
Sent: 18 November 2016 11:08
To:  Caroline Carter; Liam Wright; Karen Hall
Cc: Cathy Tilbrook
Subject: RE: ADD workshop

Hi  
Thanks for the chat earlier and agree its useful to continue the dialogue in this area. 
  
I have managed to book the first floor conference room in Cameron House in Oban from 2-4.30pm on Tuesday 13 
December. 
We share this building with Marine Scotland, but there is no dedicated visitor parking I am afraid. 
http://www.snh.gov.uk/docs/B461245.pdf 
This will have teleconference (possibly VC) acilities for Karen hopefully to join in, and we can provide tea and coffee. 
Let me know if this is suitable - otherwise can I leave you to source a different venue? 
Thanks for offering to chair the meeting and we can try to form an agenda together over the next few weeks. 
Thanks 
Suz 
  
  
  
  
  

From: @scottishsalmon.co.uk] 
Sent: 17 November 2016 15:00 
To: Suzanne Henderson; Caroline Carter; Liam Wright 
Cc: Cathy Tilbrook 
Subject: RE: ADD workshop 

Hi Suz, 
  
I met with the environment managers today and we would like to press on with our meeting on the 13th 
December. We feel it is important to get this dialogue moving and delaying until next year was not thought 
to be the right choice. 
  
Could you give me a call to discuss? Would it be possible to have this meeting in the Oban area? We have 
a requirement for another meeting around that time and I think it would be helpful to try and do it there. If 
you agree, I will attempt to find a suitable venue. 
  
Best Regards 
  

 
 

Scottish Salmon Producers’ Organisation 
  
Tel:   
Mb:   
Email: @scottishsalmon.co.uk 
  
  
  

From: Suzanne Henderson [mailto:Suzanne.Henderson@snh.gov.uk]  
Sent: 15 November 2016 12:29 
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To:  @scottishsalmon.co.uk>; Caroline Carter <Caroline.Carter@snh.gov.uk>; Liam Wright 
<Liam.Wright@snh.gov.uk> 
Cc: Cathy Tilbrook <Cathy.Tilbrook@snh.gov.uk> 
Subject: RE: ADD workshop 
  
Hi   
Sorry for delay in replying. 
Cathy is not available that date so there are a couple of options –  

         postpone until the new year – this would also allow some further updates from ongoing research on ADDs 
to feed into discussions (PhD research and SARF project) 

         continue with the meeting on 13th to discuss best practice options for ADD use in the Sound of Mull area in 
particular (Caroline, Liam and myself could all attend this meeting) 

We don’t believe noise emitting constantly is best practice so discussion points on best practice from our side have 
included: 
–         No noise emitting constantly ‐from the seal licensing questionnaire – this would appear to be quite a big ask for 

lots of farms?  
–         Triggered ADDs – what this actually means in terms of the amount of time noise is being emitted, using ADD 

equipment reports to help get a feel for this? Do mechanically triggered devices emit more noise in terms of 
time being on than manually triggered (e.g. on seal sightings)? 

–         How feasible might a strategic approach be to avoid time noise being emitted increasing any further in future 
and minimising the time noise being emitted where possible? 

  
Let me know if you think the above would be useful to discuss on the 14th or whether you wish to wait until the new 
year where we could possibly have an additional section to the wider SSPO liaison meeting for those interested? 
  
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
Sent: 14 November 2016 16:13 
To: Caroline Carter; Suzanne Henderson 
Cc: Cathy Tilbrook 
Subject: RE: ADD workshop 
  
Hi Suz and Caroline, 
  
Is the date below suitable? 
  
Regards 

 
  

From:    
Sent: 03 November 2016 14:51 
To: Caroline Carter <Caroline.Carter@snh.gov.uk>; Suzanne Henderson <Suzanne.Henderson@snh.gov.uk> 
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Cc: 'Cathy Tilbrook (Cathy.Tilbrook@snh.gov.uk)' <Cathy.Tilbrook@snh.gov.uk> 
Subject: ADD workshop 
  
Hi Suz and Caroline, 
  
I have had a fairly limited response to my request for dates for the ADD workshop, the first week in 
December looks like it won’t be possible. How does Tuesday 13th December look (in Inverness?) 
  
Regards  
  

 
 

Scottish Salmon Producers’ Organisation 
  
Tel:   
Mb:   
Email: @scottishsalmon.co.uk 
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Rhoda Davidson

From: Suzanne Henderson
Sent: 24 March 2016 10:47
To:
Cc:
Subject: RE: Consultation on a new harbour porpoise SAC

Hi   
All good here thanks . 
Great news you are keen to be involved.  
SSPO have no objections to meet all together – and the 10th May has been suggested so far. 
 

 from SSPO has agreed to try and coordinate dates and will be in touch with you shortly ‐together with 
their members. 
 
Many thanks 
Suz 
 
 
Direct Dial: 01463 725238 
Email: Suzanne.henderson@snh.gov.uk 
 
From: @griegseafood.com]  
Sent: 23 March 2016 19:06 
To: Suzanne Henderson 
Cc:  
Subject: Re: Consultation on a new harbour porpoise SAC 
 
Hi Suz. Nice to hear from you and hope you are well.  We would certainly be keen to be involved in the consultation 
process. We are happy to meet together with the SSPO members as long as they have no objections. Please let us 
know the dates. I have copied   and  from our environmental dept into this email.  
 
Best regards.   
 
Sent from my iPhone 
 
On 23 Mar 2016, at 16:58, Suzanne Henderson <Suzanne.Henderson@snh.gov.uk> wrote: 

Dear   
I hope all is well in Shetland. 
  
A consultation for a new harbour porpoise SAC has gone live today and will run for 8 weeks– please 
see www.snh.gov.uk/porpoiseSAC. 
  
Some of Grieg fish farm sites are within the newly proposed SAC boundary and we want to offer you 
the opportunity to meet up to discuss the proposed site and in particular our developing thoughts 
on potential management options over the use of ADDs. We had pre‐consultation meetings in 
August last year with SSPO members over 2 smaller sites that were originally proposed. These 
original sites did not include any Grieg farms, but the new boundary means that these discussions 
are now relevant to your company.  
  
We are about to canvas dates with SSPO and their members to meet up and discuss the proposed 
site and the associated supporting documents sometime in May. Would you or someone else from 
your company like to attend this meeting as well? Inverness or Perth are usually the most suitable 
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venues for the majority. If you would prefer to meet separately – we hope we could arrange that 
too, but it might be logistically better to hold it on the same day as we meet SSPO ‐ if possible.  
  
We will shortly be contacting everyone via a doodle poll  and so would like to add you to the list of 
contacts. Please let me know your thoughts. 
  
Best Regards 
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
  
--  
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Rhoda Davidson

From: Suzanne Henderson
Sent: 27 January 2017 12:00
To: Cathy Tilbrook; George Lees
Cc: Liam Wright; Caroline Carter; Karen Hall
Subject: RE: Draft Note of ADD / EPS Meeting with MS - 8 Nov 2016

Hi Cathy, George, 
 
I think this all makes sense – and good to see it moving forward (note   was asking how things were 
progressing). 
A couple of points: 
In Annex 2 ‐ we talk a bit about less sensitive locations and sensitive/higher risk areas – I think  it would be worth 
stating what these might be, or the sorts of things we might use to pinpoint areas – if we can agree. In addition – do 
we want MS input/thoughts on this? If so we perhaps need to highlight we want their opinion and further discussion 
so that ultimately these areas can be made clear to everyone – which would help any licence process. 
 
A similar point for Annex 1 where we talk about higher cumulative pressure – might be worth clarifying what we 
mean here (e.g. topographically restrictive and/ or higher number of farms?)– so that MS can respond 
appropriately? 
 
Cheers 
Suz 
 
 
Direct Dial: 01463 725238 
Email: Suzanne.henderson@snh.gov.uk 
 
From: Cathy Tilbrook  
Sent: 26 January 2017 16:15 
To: George Lees 
Cc: Suzanne Henderson; Liam Wright; Caroline Carter; Karen Hall 
Subject: RE: Draft Note of ADD / EPS Meeting with MS - 8 Nov 2016 
 
Hi all 
 
Many thanks to George for doing such a good job in pulling the note together and my apologies for such a long delay 
in commenting. I have spent a bit of time on this today and have added a fair bit of text, plus some queries that I’d 
value quick further comments on before we finalise and send (next week?). I also had a useful chat with Ben Ross 
and am even more convinced that the ‘Class EPS licence’ is the most promising approach for most options (see 
annex 2).  
 
Might be useful to set up a quick t/c (next Tues?) if we need to discuss and reach final agreement on any of this?  
 
Cheers, Cathy 
 
From: George Lees  
Sent: 24 January 2017 18:38 
To: Cathy Tilbrook 
Subject: FW: Draft Note of ADD / EPS Meeting with MS - 8 Nov 2016 
Importance: High 
 
Cathy: as you may have noticed,   has been tasked, on the MS Policy side at least, with progressing this 
matter. Can you check my previously drafted (draft) minute and let me know if you’re happy for me to send that on 



2

to her (and other attendees). Also, Suz, Liam and I have had a first stab at the questions we wanted to ask of MS. 
That still needs tidied up a bit. I’m happy to do that but would value your thoughts on what we have so far and 
whether anything is missing from your perspective.  
 
Many thanks. 
George 
 
From: George Lees  
Sent: 08 December 2016 18:43 
To: Suzanne Henderson; Liam Wright; Caroline Carter; Karen Hall; Cathy Tilbrook 
Subject: RE: Draft Note of ADD / EPS Meeting with MS - 8 Nov 2016 
Importance: High 
 
All: am conscious that I’ve left this hanging a bit. Have taken my original meeting note and tweaked it very slightly 
(inc edits suggested by Liam / Suz), so that it can be sent to MS for comment and subsequent endorsement as a 
minute of the meeting. NB Suz / Liam: have added in an action for one of you to check with   the point made in 
the meeting about enforceable conditions being a requirement for the cSAC. 
 
Have added an annex for listing the questions we wanted answers to but not got very far. Please can you all have a 
think about what the key questions are and add them in (Annex 1). We were also asked to outline some 
suggestions of how EPS licensing (or planning control) might be implemented, practically. Haven’t added anything 
there yet, though have copied Liam’s suggestions into the main body of the note. Again, if you have suggestions, 
add them in (Annex 2). 
 
Get back to me (and mark on draft) any final changes needed for the minute so we can send out. 
 
Ta. 
George 
From: Suzanne Henderson  
Sent: 10 November 2016 15:34 
To: Liam Wright; George Lees; Caroline Carter; Karen Hall; Cathy Tilbrook 
Subject: RE: Draft Note of ADD / EPS Meeting with MS - 8 Nov 2016 
 
George, 
I agree – well done on summarising the rambling discussions from Tuesday! 
Very minor comments in document. 
 
Liam – your table is very useful, and think it might be a good starting point if we.  
We perhaps need to get to the bottom of how we feel about the level of noise emitting from triggered devices in 
“high risk” areas….. 
My thoughts are that cumulative issues might be more tricky to deal with, particularly in the higher risk areas‐ 
perhaps the farms need to work together to have suitable mitigation in place……? 
 
 
One question I would be keen to ask MS is the whole issue about higher risk areas (in terms of both EPA and the HP 
SAC).  
Higher numbers of farms using ADDs in areas where there could be a restriction in movement/disturbance to HP (in 
terms of the CO and the EPS tests for elsewhere) seems to suggest higher risk, particularly cumulative risk… do they 
agree?  Perhaps we need to ascertain Caroline and Karen’s view on this first, in light of the changed CO? Sorry – I 
don’t know the details ehre. 
 
One other point that wasn’t made at the meeting ‐  was the argument over current levels of noise emission from 
ADDs should be taken to be ok – as we have managed to select an area good for HP despite the ADDs being used 
currently. I think you highlight our concerns to address this  – in the first of your bulleted objectives below Action 3.
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
 
From: Liam Wright  
Sent: 10 November 2016 13:08 
To: George Lees; Caroline Carter; Karen Hall; Suzanne Henderson; Cathy Tilbrook 
Subject: RE: Draft Note of ADD / EPS Meeting with MS - 8 Nov 2016 
 
Hi George, 
 
I think you’ve done a really good job of making sense of the discussions! 
 
In terms of the point: 
 
The pros and cons of different options for managing ADD use, whether via EPS or legislation or Planning control, 
were discussed 
 
My recollection of two specific examples / option are as follows: 
 
Options: 
 

a) Introduce EPS process for all aquaculture ADDs  
i) Have a general licence which sets out / conditions basic ‘best practice’ mitigation in less sensitive 

locations 
ii) In sensitive locations have a site‐specific licence which sets out site‐specific mitigation to be conditioned

 
b) Use planning conditions as first stage mitigation  
i) Condition ‘best practice’ mitigation at all sites through planning 
ii) Any breach of these conditions would be considered reckless disturbance and would require a licence or 

else an offence would be committed 
 
Though not specifically mentioned on Tuesday, if we went down the route of option b) it would follow that in 
sensitive locations ‘best practice’ mitigation may not be sufficient and so additional mitigation may be required 
(potentially including no ADDs without a license). 
 
I was thinking this through again last night and comparing ADDs as mitigation for pilling vs ADD use at fish farms. I 
have tried to summarise that thought process in the attached table. This depends on the definition of reckless, but 
assuming  the most basic definition of reckless as ’doing something without regard for the consequences’ my 
thought process led me along this line. Almost certainly jumping the gun but I would be interested if folk could have 
a think about this and consider whether route b) along the lines of the attached might be a legislatively tight 
compromise, should MS dig their heals in wrt. route a). 
 
Thanks, 
Liam  
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From: George Lees  
Sent: 09 November 2016 19:02 
To: Caroline Carter; Karen Hall; Suzanne Henderson; Liam Wright; Cathy Tilbrook 
Subject: Draft Note of ADD / EPS Meeting with MS - 8 Nov 2016 
 
All: I’ve pulled together my notes of yesterday’s meeting. It is a bit of a brain dump. Also, because we jumped 
around a bit I’ve grouped points, broadly, thematically, and some of the items may appear out of order (in terms of 
when we discussed them). Please can you all check and correct anything I’ve got wrong and add in anything I’ve 
missed. NB This is an internal note, not for sharing with MS, at this stage. I’ll prepare something more succinct and 
tidier for that purpose, once I’ve got feedback on this from you. 
 
While you are at it you’ll recall the action that we provide to MS a list of questions. I’ve not started that here 
(though various of the actions are probably relevant to that) but it would probably be helpful if, when responding, 
there are any specifically that you want Cathy (or whoever) to raise with them. 
 
George 
 
Dr George Lees 
Policy & Advice Manager (Marine Renewables) 
Scottish Natural Heritage 
Battleby 
Redgorton 
PERTH 
PH1 3EW 
 
Tel: 01738 444177 (s’board) 
01738 458621 (direct) 
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Rhoda Davidson

From: Caroline Carter
Sent: 06 October 2016 15:33
To: Suzanne Henderson; Liam Wright; Alex Turner
Cc: Cathy Tilbrook; Karen Hall
Subject: RE: Draft text for Portree fish farm response relating to ADDs and Inner Hebrides 

and the Minches cSAC

Hi All,  
 
I think the draft Alex sent through is in keeping with what we have said within our HP SAC management options 
paper and isn’t diverging from what we have said to industry. I don’t have anything major to add.  Given the 
timescale for this response, I think as long as industry are aware that our view is still being formed and they are 
involved in discussions, we shouldn’t get tied into this being precedent setting (I hope). 
 
Is the proforma for our use only? Or does it get sent with our response? If it’s sent , we probably should clarify the 
conservation objectives, the text is being refined currently and as far as I’m aware it’s not quite finalised. Karen is off 
now until the end of October, so we might need to check with Katie or Greg what text we should be using?  I think 
the latest is: 
 

1. To avoid deterioration of the habitats or significant disturbance of harbour porpoise thus ensuring that 
the integrity of the site is maintained and it continues to make an appropriate contribution to harbour 
porpoise remaining at favourable conservation status in UK waters. 
2. To ensure that, except where due to natural changes, the following are maintained in the long term: 
2a. The relatively high density of harbour porpoise throughout the site compared to other parts of the 
continental shelf within the West Scotland Management Unit. 
2b. The distribution of harbour porpoise throughout the site by avoiding significant disturbance 
2c. The condition of supporting habitats and processes, and the availability of prey for harbour porpoise. 
 

For 2. This might be changed to ‐  “To ensure that, except where due to environmental change, the following are 
maintained in the long term:” it’s not finalised yet… 
 
 
We’ve highlighted straits and sounds as areas that we want to look at more closely, including possible cumulative 
effect with other fish farms, and this application falls within that category. The conditions we are asking for here are 
in keeping with what the applicant is planning so that shouldn’t be a problem for this application.  
 
Liam makes a good point in that the fact we are saying it’s ok to use a triggered device in an SAC may mean we 
won’t be able to object to the use of ADDs anywhere else, and I’m not sure of a good answer to that. This isn’t for 
this application, but I feel that our stance should be no ADD unless the need is substantiated, or that the applicant is 
using a device that specifically targets seals and has no effect on cetaceans (ie the new ones – hopefully in the 
future). To cut down on noise pollution no device (low freq or other‐wise) should be deployed continuously. 
Triggered devices logically seem the next step. I’m not sure how other non‐triggered devices could be operated in a 
similar way though? This would mean a person would need to be present to switch it on? When/how would this be 
switched off? (and do we know how triggered devices stop after being triggered?). 
 
My reading of the device that they are proposing is that it is using an Airmar transducer – in the application, they 
cite acoustic characteristics identical to the Airmar (freq/level) so the ‘new system’ is I think to do with the operation 
– wireless links, communication to the lap top – and some form of trigger not specified. The website has very little 
information that is of use to us  (also they call the device ultrasonic – which it is not, if it emits at 10kHz as we have 
been told – this is within human hearing and therefore not ultrasonic – ug…).  
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As an aside, this company are located at the marine ‘park’ next to SAMS in Oban. I know Denise has spoken to the 
guy in detail about ADDs so we could probably arrange for him to come and tell us all about his system if it would be 
of interest. 
 
We could add in something about noise reduction and the work towards better acoustic targeting to seals, there is 
text in the management options paper that we could add in (Obj A2067288)?? 
 
I agree the anti‐predator nets and gill nets are two separate things. I’m not aware of anti‐predator nets being an 
issue for porpoise, I don’t think there is much out there on small cetaceans being entangled in fish farm nets. The gill 
nets maybe more of an issue as this is linked to bycatch. As mitigation for gill nets in fisheries, pingers are used 
(much as I don’t want to recommend more noise pollution….) but pingers are much lower in power than typical fish 
farm ADDs and are designed to ‘alert’ the cetacean to the presence of the net therefore avoiding entanglement. We 
could think about this I guess. 
 
Sorry this is last minute and rushed… 
Caroline 
 
 
From: Suzanne Henderson  
Sent: 06 October 2016 12:27 
To: Liam Wright; Alex Turner; Caroline Carter 
Cc: Cathy Tilbrook; Karen Hall 
Subject: RE: Draft text for Portree fish farm response relating to ADDs and Inner Hebrides and the Minches cSAC 
 
Hi All, 
My queries re triggered devices still stand ‐ do we really want to stipulate a triggered device ‐ or would we also be 
happy with a device operated in a certain manner similar to triggered devices ‐ i.e. when seals are 
present/stressing/damaging fish? 
 
Also – the device they are proposing – I am not sure it’s a triggered device in terms of the same design as the Ace 
aquactec one. This is more a device aimed at causing real discomfort to seals – so suspect the noise emission is 
different – but no details are available from my search of the website? 
http://www.otaq.co.uk/products/sealfence‐seal‐and‐sea‐lion‐deterrent/ 
Perhaps when the seal crosses the “fence” the noise is triggered, but its not clear what the trigger is. 
 
For info The ace aquatic US3 device is a triggered device that can be set to a rate of 0 – so it only scrams when 
triggered by fish bumping into the sensors (when stressed) or by sensors bumping into the net by bad weather. 
You can also set the rate differently – see below‐ this rate is the number of scrams per minute (from 0 to 144), and 
works independently of a trigger event.  I am less sure about what noise is emitted during each “scram”. 
http://www.aceaquatec.com/us3‐user‐manual‐2.2 
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Karen, Caroline ‐ do we want to say anything alongside the reducing noise in general bit, about moving towards 
ADDs that are more specific to seals and less impacts to cetaceans? 
 
I think the antipredator nets (to protect fish from seals) and gill nets (to capture escape fish) are two different things 
to consider. If the farm can guarantee well tensioned antipredator nets ‐ (although this is not always the case if too 
exposed), then I am  not sure this is a big issue for HP but better if Caroline or Karen advise here. 
 
 I think we should be able to rely on MS to consider HP in any fish escape plan and therefore consider gill nets in this 
light‐ but unsure really if MS will do this. There is still an issue over their role as a competent authority from FHI for 
instance. Karen/Caroline ‐ any thoughts here? Maybe one to tackle separately though as Alex suggests rather than 
through the planning process?  
 
Suz 
 
Dr Suz Henderson 
Marine Policy and Advice Officer 
Coastal and Marine Ecosystems Unit 
Scottish Natural Heritage 
Great Glen House 
Leachkin Road 
Inverness 
IV3  
 
Direct Dial: 01463 725238 
Email: Suzanne.henderson@snh.gov.uk 
 
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Liam Wright  
Sent: 06 October 2016 11:17 
To: Alex Turner; Caroline Carter 
Cc: Suzanne Henderson; Cathy Tilbrook; Karen Hall 
Subject: RE: Draft text for Portree fish farm response relating to ADDs and Inner Hebrides and the Minches cSAC 
 
Hi Alex, 
 
Well done. I think this looks good and don't have further comments on your draft text. Do we want to suggest that 
these measures should be included in an EMP or are we happy to leave that up to THC to decide? There's still some 



4

difficult questions to answer ‐ not least the fact that we are saying disturbance is likely (but in terms of CO not 
significant) so technically it would follow that EPS appraisal / licence would be required too. Is this something we 
should flag in the response? Or at least that it should be considered / discussed with MS‐LOT (which will ultimately 
come back to us). Also, I'm still aware that this will open the door to ADD use (in line with the mitigation we suggest 
in this response) across the SAC, in areas we have said no to them before we had the SAC, as well as more widely in 
other wider seas areas we have advised against previously, though we will just have to deal with this issue as and 
when it arises. I think we need to progress EPS licencing discussions with MS‐LOT as a matter of high priority as this 
has definitely forced the issue of EPS licensing for aquaculture. 
 
Happy to discuss further. 
 
Liam  
 
‐‐‐‐‐Original Message‐‐‐‐‐ 
From: Alex Turner  
Sent: 04 October 2016 17:36 
To: Liam Wright; Caroline Carter 
Cc: Suzanne Henderson; Cathy Tilbrook; Karen Hall 
Subject: Draft text for Portree fish farm response relating to ADDs and Inner Hebrides and the Minches cSAC 
Importance: High 
 
Liam and Caroline 
 
Following discussions with Cathy and George Hogg I have drafted the attached text to support a conditioned 
objection.  Please could you provide comment on whether you think it is appropriate in the next couple of days.  I 
need to get the response to George by Friday at the latest. 
 
I also attach the link to the (very draft) HRA, mainly because it summarises the proposals (the assessment of impacts 
is incomplete). 
 
Many thanks 
 
Alex 
 
 
 
Please could you 
"NATURA APPRAISAL PROFORMA ‐ Portree FF ‐ 9 September 2016" (A2102461) "Draft text options for Portree fish 
farm response relating to ADDs and Inner Hebrides and the Minches cSAC ‐ 3 October 2016" (A2102462) 
 
 
Open in Navigator            
Double click on the attachment 
 
Open in Your Browser     
NATURA APPRAISAL PROFORMA ‐ Portree FF ‐ 9 September 2016             
Latest: https://erdms.snh.gov.uk/id:A2102461/document/versions/latest 
Published:           https://erdms.snh.gov.uk/id:A2102461/document/versions/published 
Draft text options for Portree fish farm response relating to ADDs and Inner Hebrides and the Minches cSAC ‐ 3 
October 2016        
Latest: https://erdms.snh.gov.uk/id:A2102462/document/versions/latest 
Published:           https://erdms.snh.gov.uk/id:A2102462/document/versions/published 
 



1

Rhoda Davidson

From: Karen Hall
Sent: 28 October 2016 11:38
To: Suzanne Henderson; Cathy Tilbrook; Caroline Carter; Liam Wright; Nathan 

Mclaughlan; Kate Thompson; Donna Yule
Cc: George Lees; Jane Dodd
Subject: RE: EPS and ADD use at fish farms meeting

All 
Related to ongoing discussions: Nathan (with his licensing hat on) has had a query from   at Scottish 
Seafarms ( we think she is based in Orkney?) about undertaking some research on ADDs by trialling different 
frequencies and what they need to supply for an EPS license.  We are not sure if this is linked to the 
previous/ongoing study, the location of the trial or anything else.  Nathan is going back to Kirsty to request more 
details and will pass them on in due course. 
 
Donna/Kate – I don’t suppose you know anything further about what is planned? 
 
Karen 
 
From: Suzanne Henderson  
Sent: 27 October 2016 11:03 
To: @gov.scot'; @gov.scot' @gov.scot)'; @gov.scot'; 

@gov.scot'; @gov.scot'; @gov.scot'; @gov.scot'; 
@gov.scot'; Cathy Tilbrook; Caroline Carter; Liam Wright; Karen Hall; @gov.scot' 

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
 
We can offer SNH Battleby as a location but as I have not heard from   or   yet – it maybe 
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
 
http://doodle.com/poll/iven35r7hw972n62 
 
 
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
Sent: 30 January 2017 16:57
To: Caroline Carter; Liam Wright; Cathy Tilbrook
Cc: George Lees
Subject: RE: Follow up: ADD workshop

Hi Caroline, 
Its looking good so far and know it’s a balance on having too much info and not enough….. 
A few quick comments –  
 
2. I find the diagram with source and distance text a bit difficult to read – sorry – might be something to do with 
original quality? 
4. I know we want to keep this non‐ technical but think we need some reference to legislation/importance of 
existing protection?  
Also in the text – might be worth a brackets after the text disturbance and say something like altered normal 
behaviour…. or something…? 
6. Ultimate aim – do we want to emphasise here anything about strategic initiatives (MS sign up to things such as 
MSFD without actually mentioning the detail) or leave it as an SNH goal to ensure regulators and others don’t fall 
foul of legislation? We need to persuade them its their ultimate aim and to understand the strength of the reasons 
why? 
 
Do we need a few references? I know this is for site managers, but some of them are involved in research and may be keen to 
follow up some of the information?  
Maybe one to run past Jamie….? I just worry they might think its all just SNH opinion‐ when we know there is published 
research. 
I think we should brand it in some way – so its clear we have produced it ‐ although hestitant as not sure we need publishing 
team inovolved, as its shaping up well so far. 
 
Suz 
 
 
Direct Dial: 01463 725238 
Email: Suzanne.henderson@snh.gov.uk 
 
From: Caroline Carter  
Sent: 30 January 2017 10:55 
To: Liam Wright; Suzanne Henderson; Cathy Tilbrook 
Cc: George Lees 
Subject: RE: Follow up: ADD workshop 
 
Hi all,   
 
This is where I’ve got to on this. It’s A3 because I thought that would be printable as well as projectable. I’ve 
generated all the diagrams using word to avoid any copy write issues and I’ve added a bit of text in bullet point and 
non‐science wording. I’m happy to hear what you think. I can change any or all of it ‐ it’s not set in stone ‐ but this is 
kinda what I had in mind. Depending on your thoughts, we could also send it on to the group for their input? 
 
Thanks,  
Caroline 
 
From: Liam Wright  
Sent: 26 January 2017 09:22 
To: Caroline Carter; Suzanne Henderson; Cathy Tilbrook 
Subject: RE: Follow up: ADD workshop 
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Hi Caroline, 
 
Thanks, sounds as though you are on the case. I’m happy to progress it however you see fit. I don’t think it has to be 
a corporate flier, just whatever will work best for industry. Do you want the help of the SNH design people or are 
you saying you happy to deal with it without their input? 
 
Cheers 
Liam  
 
From: Caroline Carter  
Sent: 25 January 2017 17:36 
To: Liam Wright; Suzanne Henderson; Cathy Tilbrook 
Subject: RE: Follow up: ADD workshop 
 
Thanks Liam,  
 
I have already made a start on thinking about what should be included for this purpose, and I agree that it should 
not be scientific in style. It’s a big technical subject, so I have already put some thought into how to present this to a 
lay audience.  We will need to be careful with the images, many that are available may have copywrite, I may be 
able to use some from my previous presentations, but I think I may need to put some together myself as a lot will be 
too technical. Having said that I would not want to make it too simple.  
 
I’m on it ‐ I don’t think this will take me too long, but I just need some concerted time to consider it fully. My plan 
was once I had ideas together to then circulate for us to discuss, and at that point look at the form it should take. 
 
I was speaking to   the other day (he rang me re killer whale sound deterrent) and we touched upon this 
material. When we spoke about this at the meeting we were talking more about a poster than a flyer. This all came 
about from a request for some help re images from ourselves to help the companies themselves raise awareness. 

 suggested something that could be in digital form for them to either project or print out as needed. They were 
not looking for a corporate type flyer – but is this how we now want to progress this?   
 
Caroline 
 
From: Liam Wright  
Sent: 25 January 2017 17:04 
To: Caroline Carter; Suzanne Henderson; Cathy Tilbrook 
Subject: RE: Follow up: ADD workshop 
 
Hi Caroline, 
 
Just a quick email to let you know that I had a chat with Jim Jeffries about the possibility of producing some 
awareness raising material for industry. He was very positive and thought, given the very defined scope, that there 
would be a good chance that our internal designers would be able to turn something round in‐house relatively 
quickly (based on the assumption it would be something along the lines of an A4 flier) without us needing to bid for 
their time. Jim is going to speak to Alison Herman who manages our design team next week, she should hopefully be 
able to confirm this will be ok. 
 
We need to gather some images (Jim thought it would be best to keep the images simple but strong!) and pull 
together a few bullet points on the info we want to convey. He thought we should try and keep it as simple and non‐
scientific as possible, given the target audience is going to be farm managers. 
 
Might be easiest for us to have a quick chat on what sort of info we want to convey and think about how to pull it all 
together in a form that will fit on an A4 flier! 
 
Speak soon. 
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Liam 
 
 
 
From: Caroline Carter  
Sent: 16 January 2017 12:29 
To: Liam Wright; Suzanne Henderson; Cathy Tilbrook 
Subject: RE: Follow up: ADD workshop 
 
Hi Liam,  
 
I’ve not had chance to think about this in detail yet. We don’t have existing materials that we can use so it will have 
to be from scratch. At the meeting we were talking about a poster, but maybe a flyer might be more appropriate? I 
have images/figures etc from talks that I have done in the past which I could use.  
 
I’m not sure we were offering to supply the physical poster/flyers, I think I had in mind that we put together the 
information and then the industry can distribute as they feel most useful. Happy to hear what you think on what 
would be most useful… particularly if there is any SNH/Comms requirement/format on us producing this kind of 
raising awareness material? Who should I speak to about this? 
 
I might get chance this Wednesday to start thinking about content, or more realistically – next week (23‐27) 
Chat tomorrow? And then confirm   
 
Caroline 
 
 
From: Liam Wright  
Sent: 16 January 2017 12:11 
To: Caroline Carter; Suzanne Henderson; Cathy Tilbrook 
Subject: FW: Follow up: ADD workshop 
 
Hi all, 
 
We have some actions from the recent ADD BP meeting we had in Oban. I have put suggested names against each 
but happy to change as required. The most pressing action appears to be the awareness raising material. Caroline, 
just wondered what your thoughts are on us pulling something together for this? Do we have any existing materials 
that could be used, or tweaked and then used? Is this something we could do ourselves or do you think we need to 
involve our comm’s people too? 
 
SNH actions: 
 
ACTION: Two masters projects on ADD noise surveys have been undertaken. SNH to distribute these to the group 
when they are published. – Caroline 
 
ACTION: SNH to interrogate seal licence data from MS and identify gaps. – All (Liam undertake initial filter and 
circulate spreadsheet) 
 
ACTION: SNH to develop awareness raising information / poster for industry to distribute to all farms ‐ Caroline if 
required with help from Liam and Comm’s? 
 
ACTION: SNH to initiate discussions with Freedom Foods – Cathy / Caroline via SASWAG / freedom foods review 

? 
 
Though it’s not in the minutes I also recall us saying we would consider our position on the sites on the east coast of 
the OH. These sites are outside the boundary of the SAC but will have connectivity. It would be good to agree a 
position on how we consider these sites. Perhaps we could discuss this tomorrow? 
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Thanks 
Liam 
 
From: @scottishsalmon.co.uk]  
Sent: 10 January 2017 12:43 
To: Suzanne Henderson; Liam Wright; Caroline Carter 
Cc: @scottishseafarms.com)';  

 
Subject: Follow up: ADD workshop 
 
Dear Suz, Liam and Caroline, 
 
Attached are some brief notes and actions from the meeting we held in Oban on the 13th December. 
Hopefully they are fairly self-explanatory. One of the actions was for SNH to provide some posters / fliers to 
raise awareness. Caroline, is this something that could be done fairly promptly? One of our member 
companies is undertaking an event with their farm managers and it would be an ideal opportunity to raise 
awareness with them about underwater noise. Let me know what sort of timescales are involved, i.e. 
whether it’s a case of distributing something or starting from scratch with design and print. 
 
Best Regards  
 

 
 

Scottish Salmon Producers’ Organisation 
 
Tel:   
Mb:   
Email: @scottishsalmon.co.uk 
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Rhoda Davidson

From: Donna Yule
Sent: 19 September 2016 09:11
To: Liam Wright; Suzanne Henderson
Subject: RE: Low Frequency ADD's

Very interesting and quite worrying!  To my knowledge, there has been no testing in Orkney and that no EPS 
licences had been issued.  I have just had a quick chat with Kate to see if she was aware of anything while I was off, I 
will forward the emails she has sent me. 
 
Suz, are you able to shed any light on this testing and the claims made in the product pdf? 
 
Thanks 
Donna 
 
Donna Yule 
Operations Officer, Orkney 
 
Scottish Natural Heritage | 54-56 Junction Road | Kirkwall | Orkney | KW15 1AW 
Direct dial:   01856 886157 
Extension: 7206157 
e-mail: Donna.yule@snh.gov.uk 
 
Working days Mon-Thurs 
  
 
From: Liam Wright  
Sent: 15 September 2016 17:28 
To: Donna Yule; Suzanne Henderson 
Subject: RE: Low Frequency ADD's 
 
Also note that in the PDF they provided the manufacturer states: 
 

 
 
From: Donna Yule  
Sent: 15 September 2016 17:06 
To: Suzanne Henderson 
Cc: Liam Wright 
Subject: RE: Low Frequency ADD's 
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Hi Suz 
 
Didn’t think you had given permission but you had given us a heads up that there may be an ADD enquiry for up 
here.  Have filed the request in erdms qB7798, obj ref A2088527.  Will send an acknowledgement of email to 

.  Will get request added to CMS and will probably be in touch with you/Liam next week if that is ok? 
 
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
Sent: 15 September 2016 17:02 
To: Suzanne Henderson; Donna Yule 
Subject: RE: Low Frequency ADD's 
 
I’m pretty sure an EPS licence was granted for a trial up in Scapa Flow previously. Will look for the details but, yes, 
Caroline was involved with that.  
 
From: Suzanne Henderson  
Sent: 15 September 2016 16:56 
To: Donna Yule; Liam Wright 
Subject: RE: Low Frequency ADD's 
 
Hi 
To be aware ‐ I have not given any such permission! 
Not sure if this has been through licensing though and maybe Caroline was involved? 

 from SSF did speak to me about wanting to trial using ADDs though in Scapa – and wondered who should 
they contact ‐ think I relayed this to you both, so maybe related? 
Suz 
 
 
Direct Dial: 01463 725238 
Email: Suzanne.henderson@snh.gov.uk 
 
From: @scottishseafarms.com]  
Sent: 15 September 2016 16:05 
To: Donna Yule 
Cc: Kirsty Brown; Suzanne Henderson 
Subject: Low Frequency ADD's 
 
Hi Donna 
 
I was hoping that you could help me out. We were hoping to trial a new low frequency (Cetacean Friendly) Anti 
Deterrent Device at two sites in Orkney this winter. The sites we had in mind were Toyness and Wyre, I’d appreciate 
it if you could advise on how we would get the appropriate permission to install the systems.  
 
Further details on the proposed system is attached, the manufacturer claims that they have permission from SNH 
(Via Suzanne Henderson) to deploy these ADD’s in protected areas. However, I thought I’d double check locally that 
this was indeed the case before I took the project any further. 
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Rhoda Davidson

From: Caroline Carter
Sent: 24 March 2016 14:20
To: Jane Dodd
Cc: Liam Wright; Suzanne Henderson; Andrew Campbell
Subject: RE: SSPO HP dSAC pre consultation discussions

Hi Jane,  
 
I don’t think we would be able to meaningfully model disturbance zones for harbour seals. The disturbance 
thresholds for cetaceans are tenuous enough as behavioural reactions are highly context driven and there is huge 
variability of observed responses event to the same stimulus. 
 
The zones as modelled for HP use the only useable disturbance threshold published (dBht could offer a disturbance 
zone – but there are serious concerns with this methodology, it’s also proprietary to Subacoustec so we would not 
be able to model this effectively). There is not the equivalent for seals for disturbance to continuous sounds 
specified in the literature (there is a threshold for impulsive sounds but this is related to sources such as pile driving 
or explosives).  
 
The modelling I did was unweighted, it essentially takes the source level, subtracts the modelled propagation loss 
(PL) to estimate received levels at distance, the RL is then compared to the disturbance threshold to estimate a 
range. Unweighted  ‐ means there was no filter applied to account for differences in hearing abilities, but PL was 
modelled at 10kHz which is well within the hearing ability of both cetaceans and pinnipeds which would not be 
filtered out using weighting.  
 
Southall et al (2007) is a key resource that we use for injury and disturbance and in this text, they state –  
 
“The effects of nonpulse exposures on pinnipeds are poorly understood”     (the nonpulse category includes ADDs) 
 
“…limited available data suggest exposures between 90 – 140 dB re 1µPa generally do not induce strong behavioural 
responses “.   
 
The threshold level used for the modelling I did was 120 dB re 1µPa. So we could infer that the disturbance zone for 
seals would be less than the 2.5km as modelled?? But I’m not sure we should put a number on this as the evidence 
is not there – and defining behavioural responses is really on shaky ground. 
 
Sorry not to be more positive, please come back to me if you have any queries. 
Best,  
Caroline 
 
 
 
From: Jane Dodd  
Sent: 23 March 2016 12:13 
To: Caroline Carter 
Cc: Liam Wright; Suzanne Henderson; Andrew Campbell 
Subject: RE: SSPO HP dSAC pre consultation discussions 
 
Thanks for these Suz. 
 
Caroline, 
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Would it be possible to model acoustic disturbance zones for harbour seals in the same way?  It might further help 
our discussions with the industry about ADD use.  I am concerned about the implications for the “no disturbance” 
conservation objective for seal SACs… 
 
Jane. 
 
From: Suzanne Henderson  
Sent: 22 March 2016 12:09 
To: Jane Dodd; Andrew Campbell 
Cc: Liam Wright 
Subject: SSPO HP dSAC pre consultation discussions 
 
Jane, Andrew, 
Attached are the maps we produced along with Caroline’s method for the modelling of acoustic disturbance zones. 
There are 2 buffers (with lots of caveats due to unknowns!): one for terecos ‐50m – but so small it is represented by 
a cross, and the other ADDs – 2500m. 
 
There are two SSPO data maps and these are for the 2 original HP dSAC areas which we asked SSPO for their data 
(2015 info). 
There are 3 MS licence data maps ‐ I did these using the data in the seal licence info Oana  sent me (2014/15 info).  
I tried to do something with the information on how often the ADDs are being used – hence the different colours.  
 
There maybe other sites which were not in the seal licence data information – but are still active fish farm sites‐ that 
we might have missed – see the all active sites map. 
 
Discussions were more about assurances that we would not be suggesting a complete ban on ADDs, but more about 
working with them to reduce noise pollution particularly in areas of higher risk (SoMull), and a longer term goal of 
other types of ADDs (if the low frequency ones prove to have no impacts on cetaceans).  
We highlighted the ongoing work on CO. 
The new Impact Assessment by MS – shows a small financial impact on industry and SSPO seemed happy with that 
too. 
Note we have not spoken directly to actual companies yet – SSPO were tasked in doing that, but a meeting is 
planned in April some time. 
 
 
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

From: Katie Gillham
Sent: 12 March 2016 17:45
To: Suzanne Henderson; Caroline Carter; Cathy Tilbrook; Liam Wright; John Baxter
Cc: George Lees
Subject: RE: SSPO HP SAC preconsultation meeting

Hi Suz 
 
Thanks for copying me in.  Given   email following the SPA workshop (you’ll have seen my response), it might 
be worth adding this to the agenda to provide reassurance? 
 
Thanks 
Katie 
 
-----Original Appointment----- 
From: Suzanne Henderson  
Sent: 10 March 2016 16:16 
To: Caroline Carter; Cathy Tilbrook; Liam Wright; John Baxter 
Cc: Katie Gillham; George Lees 
Subject: SSPO HP SAC preconsultation meeting 
When: 16 March 2016 15:00-16:00 (UTC) Dublin, Edinburgh, Lisbon, London. 
Where: teleconference 
 
 
Hello all, (cc Katie and George for info only)  and John in case you are  attending on the 17th! 
 
I think we might need a quick catch up before the SSPO meeting on 17th next week, to agree on how to present the 
updated HP SAC information.  
We will find out on Wednesday morning – on the specifics of what we can and can’t say at the meeting, but I think 
the main discussion will be our actions from the last meeting. 
 
Attached below are the last HP SAC ADD workshop notes, Caroline’s draft internal note on acoustic disturbance 
zones from current ADDs, the latest MOP, and draft acoustic disturbance maps using buffers from Caroline’s 
modelling. Note that the Terecos modelled buffer is so small you can’t see it on the maps, so I have labelled these 
with a big cross. The maps should help discussions on cumulative/higher risk areas – so let me know what you think. 
I will try and map a wider area using the MS seal survey data which has ADD information – needing help with this so 
might not get this done by our meeting next week. 
 
 
 << File: ADD workshop notes 25‐08‐15 ‐ FINAL.obr >>  << File: ADDs and Aquaculture_DRAFT Internal note of 
acoustic disturbance zones_CC 1‐03‐16.obr >>  << File: Combined Reg 33 & MOP ‐ version 3 ‐ Inner Hebrides and the 
Minches pSAC ‐ 23 February 2016.obr >>  
 << File: ADD use SSPO data w modelled buffer ‐ North Minch.obr >>  << File: ADD use SSPO data w modelled buffer ‐
Southern Sea of Hebrides.obr >>  
 
The action points from the last workshop are below with some of my comments.  
Is there anything else we can feed back for point 3?  
 
Action points: 
1. Salmon farming industry to provide information on ADD use to SNH (via SSPO, using the proforma provided) –

provided by end of October 2015. 
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2. SNH to provide more  information on the areas of “higher concern” within the respective dSAC’s.   Caroline to 
chat  through  the modelling  approach  and  all  caveats,  and  show maps  produced  (still working  on  this  to

discuss). Potential implications for SSPO members – MOP discussion‐ if appropriate? 

3. SNH to investigate knowledge gaps surrounding porpoise behaviour within the dSAC’s and consider options for 
research. SARF research proposal,  anything else? 

4. SNH to consider the potential for using cetacean observation information from farms – we suggested this as a 
MSc topic at MASTs/SNH research day which has attracted interest from a PhD student… 

5. Future meetings: To be decided once the above action points are complete. 

Cheers 
Suz 
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Rhoda Davidson

From: @scottishsalmon.co.uk>
Sent: 19 October 2016 10:40
To: Suzanne Henderson
Subject: RE: SSPO/SNH ADD working group

Hi Suz, 
 
Sorry, I was off last week hence the delayed response. I will be meeting with the environment managers 
next Tuesday and will canvas them for a date in early December and get back to you. 
 
Best Regards 

 
 
From: Suzanne Henderson [mailto:Suzanne.Henderson@snh.gov.uk]  
Sent: 11 October 2016 11:03 
To: @scottishsalmon.co.uk> 
Subject: SSPO/SNH ADD working group 
 
Hi   
Cathy mentioned you are catching up at the end of this month‐ but we are still keen to pull together an ADD working 
group to discuss ADD use, best practice etc  within the HP cSAC – an action from our last SSPO/liaison meeting. 
We had thought towards the end of November might be good, but I have had a quick check of colleagues calendars 
and we have a 2 day meeting 22/23rd Nov and Caroline is not available the following week. Perhaps early December 
might be better? 
Do you want to canvass for dates with some of your members. We can offer either Battleby or Inverness as locations 
if helpful. 
 
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
intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they  
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
Sent: 05 May 2016 14:58
To: Cathy Tilbrook; Suzanne Henderson; Caroline Carter; Karen Hall
Cc: Iain Sime; Emma Philip; Krysia Campbell
Subject: SSPO Agenda and minutes
Attachments: FINAL MINUTES - SSPO - SNH LIASION MEETING - APR 2015.obr; SNH - SSPO 

liaison meeting agenda 10-4-16.obr

Hi there, 
 
The agenda for Tuesday and the minutes from the last meeting are attached. 
 
A few AP’s from the previous minutes but nothing major: 
 
AP1: canvass for dates to hold joint SNH / SSPO seminar ‐ discharged 
AP2: SNH to consider comments on draft guidance (wild fish) received from all consultees and convene working 
group / management group discussions asap – discharged (I think) Iain has considered all comments and the 
guidance is now sitting with SAC for comment / discussion / approval – I assume the SAC could relate to the working 
group / management group referred to in this action? 
AP3: SNH to share draft Management Options Paper for Sea of Hebrides pMPA with SSPO – discharged I assume 
 
As you’ll see we have a few updates to provide on SPA designation progress, wild fish guidance and visualisation 
(guidance for LAs and industry). Krysia has been in touch to say she will get something across to me before Tuesday. 
I haven’t heard from Iain or Emma yet wrt. wild fish guidance and SPA designation – I’ll give you both a call shortly to 
discuss. 
 
Cheers, 
Liam 
 
 
Liam Wright | Marine Policy and Advice Officer ‐ Aquaculture 
Coastal and Marine Ecosystem Unit 
Scottish Natural Heritage | 1 Kilmory Industrial Estate | Lochgilphead | PA31 8RR 
T: 01546 603611 
E: liam.wright@snh.gov.uk  
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

Hebrides and the Minches_MS_Licence data_Fullmap.obr; ADD use - Inner 
Hebrides and the Minches_MS_Licence data_North.obr; ADD use and all active sites 
- Inner Hebrides and the Minches.obr; ADD use SSPO data w modelled buffer - 
North Minch.obr; ADD use SSPO data w modelled buffer - Southern Sea of 
Hebrides.obr; ADDs and Aquaculture_DRAFT Internal note of acoustic disturbance 
zones_CC 1-03-16.obr

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
 



 

 

 
 

Industry / SNH Liaison Meeting 
10th May 2016 

 
1. Present 
2. Apologies 

 
 

3. SPA Update 
 
A brief update was provided on proposals to consider the designation of a suite of new 
marine SPAs. Key points were a) as of 10th May Marine Scotland had not yet published a 
final report following the workshops held in March; b) no decision yet from Ministers on 
whether / when the proposed SPAs will go to formal consultation. 
 
Some questions were raised regarding the science used to select sites. It was noted that 
there will be an opportunity for industry to raise any issues during the formal consultation 
process. 
 

4. Harbour Porpoise SAC Update 
 
4.1 Consultation - A brief update on the consultation process was provided by SNH. Final 
date for representations was 18th May. The key concern for industry relates to management 
measures in relation to the use of ADDs within and close to site boundary. 
 
4.2 ADDs – SNH provided a presentation relating to modelling work used to help understand 
the scale of underwater noise emanating from ADDs used within the site boundary. SNH 
highlighted that while it is possible to model sound propagation it is difficult to predict what 
effect that sound will have on cetaceans as behavioural response is highly context driven.  
In-house modelling indicated that most ADDs in current use could cause disturbance up to 
2.5km from source (other literature suggests potentially greater distances for harbour 
porpoise). The exception related to the Teracos model which has a reduced possible 
disturbance range of only 50-100m from source, primarily due to the lower sound output 
level. Other variables will also influence sound propagation and subsequent risk of 
disturbance but  are not straightforward to model and will therefore have to be taken in to 
account on a site-by-site basis (such as shadowing effect of islands etc). 
 
Initial thoughts are that ADDs will not be a major concern for most of the SAC (the exception 
being areas which are identified as high cumulative risk / narrow straits where there may be 
barriers to passage). However, it is likely that a more formal arrangement will be required, in 
terms of how ADDs are used, to ensure potential risks are minimised.    
 
Concerns were raised by industry that the SAC status would result in more sites not being 
allowed to use ADDs without formal permission to do so (i.e. more frequent implementation 
planning conditions). SNH indicated that this may not necessarily be the case. However, 



 

there would be changes in terms of the assessment process that is required (new sites 
inside the SAC will require Habitats Regulation Appraisal and possible Appropriate 
Assessment prior to planning consent being granted). 
 
Industry suggested developing best practice measure by focusing closely on 2 or 3 higher 
cumulative risk areas. The measures developed in these areas could subsequently be 
applied more widely across the SAC, if required. 
 
Key areas of higher cumulative risk / barrier effects were deemed to be the Sound of Mull, 
Lismore, west of Mull and the Sound of Raasay but it may also be necessary to think about 
other areas in due course. 
 
AP1 – Establish a ‘working group’ with SNH, MS, and operators in these key areas to 
develop best practice guidelines to apply across the site. 
 
It was highlighted by industry that the requirements of some accreditation schemes such as 
freedom foods require operators to undertake certain management measures in order to 
retain accreditation. Concerns were raised that if a seal attack takes place and ADDs were 
not used as a form of defence that this could risk accreditation being lost. 
 
Retaining Freedom Foods accreditation is deemed by industry to be a major barrier in 
reducing ADD use.  
 
AP 2 - SNH to seek discussions with Freedom Foods regarding ADD use inside the 
Inner Hebrides and the Minches pSAC.  
 
Similar concerns were raised regarding the legal responsibility that operators have to protect 
the welfare of their stock; ADDs are deemed by industry as an essential element of this 
protection. 
 
Further work is required to help understand why certain ADDs work in some locations but 
not in others. A suggestion was made that this may be something that could be pursued 
through SARF or MASTs. 
 
It was noted that it will be important to understand how industry uses ADDs and specifically 
to clarify what is meant by certain terms such as ‘continuous use’ and ‘intermittent use’ as 
interpretation of these terms will differ between farm managers. 
 
A suggestion was made that the wording of the annual seal licensing survey could be 
amended to clarify these terms and subsequently capture more detail which could be used 
to help guide management measures.  
 
AP3 – SNH / MS to discuss amended wording of annual SOI survey to capture the 
information required to guide further management / best practice development. SSPO 
to comment on any proposed changes.  
 
4.3 EPS Licencing – Industry questioned whether the designation of the SAC would have an 
influence on the requirement for EPS licensing. 
 
It was pointed out by SNH that there is currently a discrepancy between how EPS licencing 
is applied to aquaculture when compared to other industries, such as marine renewables. 
Though this issue does need to be addressed to ensure a joined up national approach is 
being taken to the use of ADDs in relation to EPS licencing, it is not an issue which will be 
influenced by the designation of the SAC. 
 



 

Industry expressed concerns over confusion in the way that EPS licensing is currently 
handled.  
 
SNH noted these concerns and pointed out that in fact they are only obliged to provide 
advice to MS-LOT on whether the favourable conservation status of the EPS would be 
affected. 
 
AP4 – SNH and MS to further discuss the interplay between planning permission and 
EPS licencing and clarify the roles and responsibilities of SNH and MS-LOT  
 

5. Wild Fish Guidance 
SNH provided an update to inform industry that the wild fish Natura guidance has now been 
through QA with their Scientific Advisory Committee and has now been signed-off and a final 
version has been circulated. 
 
SSPO had not had an opportunity to discuss the final version internally but indicated they 
would provide a further response, for SNH to have on record. 
 
Industry expressed concern that they would be responsible for undertaking monitoring as 
defined in the approach to assessing risk to the SAC features as defined in the guidance. 
 
SNH indicated that for sites potentially impacting an SAC the intention would not be to place 
the entire responsibility for all monitoring on industry. The intention is to use existing data in 
combination with new data on wild fish populations as part of the decision making process. 
There may also be scope to utilise RAFTS as part of wider monitoring measures, though the 
technical group need to discuss and clarify the detail further. 
 
AP5 SNH to clarify what is meant by ‘regional farm management groups’ as defined in 
the guidance 
 

6. Aquaculture Visualisation Guidance 
 
SNH provided an update on proposed guidance on the preparation of visualisations for the 
aquaculture sector. Work is currently ongoing to draft a broad structure for this guidance; 
once this has been done SNH will be contacting industry to discuss their needs with the 
intention of incorporating in to the final guidance. 
 
Guidance will apply to both shellfish and finfish sectors. 
 
It was noted that Highland Council seem to have taken a harder stance on the preparation of 
visualisations, expecting aquaculture industry to adhere to the same standards as are 
expected of the renewables industry. 
 
It was noted that Argyll Council are also seeking a standard approach to the preparation of 
aquaculture visualisations. 
 
AP6 - SNH will be in touch with industry in the coming months to discuss this further. 
 

7. AOB 
 

 is the new lead on aquaculture for THC following the departure of key 
aquaculture specialists. 
 

8. DONM 



 

Liaison meeting scheduled for autumn 2016. Additional targeted meetings are likely to take 
place prior to this to discuss ADD working groups. 
 
 
 
 
 
 




